1988

# Joseph Brozda, Warren T. Christensen v. Houston Investors Limited, Donald Houston, H. Clark Houston, and Linford Orton : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS

## STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

Should the Plaintiffs be required to make additional contributions to the limited partnership or should they be allowed to dissolve the partnership and receive a return of the contributions previously made.

#### STATUTES

The Utah Limited Partnership Act, Sections 48-2-1 through 48-2-27 and particularly Sections 48-2-1, 48-2-10, 48-2-16, 48-2-17, 48-2-18, 48-2-22 and 48-2-23. The Act is set forth in the Addendum.

#### STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF THE CASE

This was an action brought by Plaintiffs to dissolve the partnership known as Houston Investors Limited, a Utah limited partnership, and receive a return of contributions made to the partnership. The Defendants claim that the Plaintiffs had not made their assessments as required by the partnership and were not entitled to a return of their capital contributions and were not entitled to a dissolution of the partnership.

#### COURSE OF PROCEEDINGS

The Plaintiffs filed a complaint in the District Court of Iron County, State of Utah against the Defendants requesting a dissolution of the Partnership known as Houston Investors Limited and a return of their capital contributions. The Defendants counterclaimed stating that the partnership was formed for the

purpose of buying a certain piece of property and that the Plaintiffs committed themselves to a long term investment by joining the partnership and requested that the court determine the Plaintiffs had not made payments as agreed and were not entitled to a dissolution of the partnership or a return of their contribution.

#### DISPOSITION AT TRIAL COURT

The Plaintiffs filed a Motion for Summary Judgment and the trial court admitted depositions into evidence and reviewed affidavits and the file in this matter and determined as a matter of law that the Plaintiffs were not required to make additional capital contributions to the partnership and that the Plaintiffs were entitled to a dissolution of the partnership and that the Plaintiffs were entitled to a return of their contribution.

#### STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

On the 20th day of December, 1973, Houston Investors Limited, a Utah limited partnership (hereafter Houston Investors), purchased certain property from Herbert D. White, Larue O. White, H.D. White, Shirley White and Jeanne W. Pryor (hereafter the "White Property"). The real estate contract provided that Houston Investors would purchase the property together with water rights and certain grazing rights. The agreement was signed by Don Houston on behalf of Houston Investors. The agreement provided a total purchase price of

\$339,350.00 and required the buyer to pay \$20,000.00 on or before December 30, 1973 and a \$15,000.00 payment prior to June 1, 1974 and \$15,000.00 on November 1, 1974 and a payment was due in the sum of \$15,000.00 each November thereafter for a period of fifteen (15) years.

The main purpose for Houston Investors was the purchase of the "White Property" and Houston Investors partnership was formed sometime in 1974 and filed with the Clerk of the Court of Iron County on November 13, 1974 (see affidavit of Donald Houston and Certificate of Limited Partnership). Warren Christensen paid \$10,000.00 and became a partner on the 7th day of July, 1974. Joseph Brozda paid \$10,500.00 and became a partner on the 26th day of July, 1974. The other partners are Patrick Quigley, Preston Adams, John Redd, Mervyn Cox, Harry Randall, A.J. Flood, Lin Orton, Merle Errett, Clark Houston and Donald Houston. Each partner knew that the partnership was formed with its main purpose to purchase the "White Property" and that assessments for the "White Property" would be made over a fifteen (15) year period of time and that the partnership would last at least that long (See affidavits of Donald Houston, Lin Orton and Clark Houston). Payments made by each of the Plaintiffs and the losses they took for the years they paid are set forth hereafter (see deposition of Joseph Gubler, page 27 and Exhibit 2, attached to said deposition, see also the capital contribution sheet set forth in the addendum).

**JOSEPH BROZDA:**

1974	-	payment	\$10,000.00	/	income tax	loss	\$4,277.00
1975	-	payment	\$ 2,000.00	/	income tax	loss	\$1,378.90
1976	-	payment	\$ 1,660.08	/	income tax	loss	\$1,725.46
1977	-	payment	\$10,000.00	/	income tax	loss	\$5,884.88
1978	-	payment	\$ 2,000.00	/	income tax	loss	\$4,527.34
1978	-	payment	\$ 6,100.00	/	income tax	loss	\$3,623.58
1980	-	payment	\$ 5,000.00	/	income tax	loss	\$1,891.75
1981	-	payment	\$ 4,542.54	/	income tax	loss	\$2,708.36
1982	-	payment	\$ 2,000.00	/	income tax	loss	\$5,821.70
1983	-	payment	\$ ---	/	income tax	loss	\$1,637.04

**WARREN CHRISTENSEN:**

1974	-	payment	\$10,000.00	/	income tax	loss	\$4,277.00
1975	-	payment	\$ 2,000.00	/	income tax	loss	\$1,378.90
1976	-	payment	\$ 1,600.00	/	income tax	loss	\$1,725.46
1977	-	payment	\$10,000.00	/	income tax	loss	\$5,884.88
1978	-	payment	\$ 2,000.00	/	income tax	loss	\$4,527.34
1979	-	payment	\$ 6,100.00	/	income tax	loss	\$3,623.58
1980	-	payment	\$ 5,000.00	/	income tax	loss	\$1,981.75
1981	-	payment	\$ 2,500.00	/	income tax	loss	\$2,708.36
1982	-	payment	\$ ---	/	income tax	loss	\$1,637.04

The partnership was signed and filed after the purchase of the "White Property" and all partners knew that additional assessments had to be made and all partners made additional assessments until 1982. The 1983 assessment and the assessments through 1987 have not been paid by the Plaintiffs and the other

partners have been assessed equally to make up the payments so that the agreement on the "White Property" could be kept and properly paid. The partnership has made the payments as agreed to November of 1987.

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Houston Investors Limited, was organized with its main purpose to purchase a piece of property known as the "White Property". The Plaintiffs knew that Houston Investors Limited had purchased the "White Property" at the time they became partners and knew that said purchase was for an extended period of time. The Plaintiffs, the general partner Don Houston, and the other limited partners paid annual assessments from 1974 until 1982. The Plaintiffs discontinued making payments in 1982 and the general partner, Don Houston, and the other limited partners made up the assessment of the Plaintiffs and continued making the payments on the "White Property". The Plaintiffs made an agreement to enter a limited partnership for a term of at least fifteen (15) years and further agreed to annual assessments to pay for the "White Property" and the Plaintiffs made annual assessments for a period of seven (7) years and should not be allowed to dissolve the partnership and request a return of their capital contribution until they have completed their side of the agreement.

## ARGUMENT

### POINT I.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN DETERMINING AS A MATTER OF LAW THAT THE PLAINTIFFS WERE NOT REQUIRED TO MAKE ADDITIONAL CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND THAT PLAINTIFFS WERE ENTITLED TO A DISSOLUTION OF THE PARTNERSHIP AND A RETURN OF THE CONTRIBUTION MADE.

The courts ruling was made on the Plaintiffs Motion for Summary Judgment. The general rule relating to Summary Judgment is that a Summary Judgment is proper only if the pleadings, depositions, affidavits and admissions show that there is no genuine issue of material fact and that the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law. In re Williams' Estates, 348 P.2d 683 (Utah 1960). It only takes one sworn statement to dispute facts on the other side of the controversy and create an issue of fact. Holbrook Company v. Adams, 542 P.2d 191 (Utah 1975). Where a Summary Judgment is granted, the adverse party, on appeal, is entitled to have the court survey the evidence in the light most favorable to the party appealing. Thompson v. Ford Motor Company, 395 P.2d 62 (Utah 1964). In the instant case the Plaintiffs claim that they are not required to make additional contributions because payment of additional contributions must be set forth in the certificate of limited partnership. This claim arises pursuant to the Utah Limited Partnership Act, Section 48-2-2 (7) which provides, in part, that the certificate of limited partnership must set forth the additional contributions, if any, agreed to be made by each

limited partner and the times at which, or events on the happening of which, they shall be made.

Defendants contend that the Utah Limited Partnership Act was passed for the purpose of limiting the liability of limited partners to third-parties. The Defendants contend that the Plaintiffs can agree with the other partners to make additional contributions and that such contributions do not necessarily have to be set out in the certificate of limited partnership. In the instant case the certificate of limited partnership sets forth the name and address of the general partner, Don Houston, and seven (7) limited partners. The partnership specifically sets forth in paragraph 18 that the interest being purchased is for a long term investment and without current intention of resale. The certificate does not set forth the duration of the partnership and the Defendants contend that that duration should be at least fifteen (15) years to conclude the payment of the White contract. Limited partnerships were not recognized at common law and are a creation of statute Evans v. Galardi, 546 P.2d 313 (Cal. 1976). The main purpose of the statute is to limit the liability of the limited partners to third parties. Hoefer v. Hall, 411 P.2d 230 (N.M. 1965). The liability of the limited partner is limited to the amount of his capital contribution 60 Am Jur 2d Section 370. The Plaintiffs contention that the partners cannot agree to make additional contributions if said contributions are not set forth in the certificate would require all partners of a limited

partnership to amend the certificate whenever additional assessments are made. This rational could be construed to mean that the Plaintiffs would not be entitled to any contributions which they did make that are not set forth in the certificate. This rational is obviously unreasonable because the partners are entitled to agree to make additional contributions and entitled to have those contributions become a part of their personal property. The Plaintiffs are also entitled to agree with the other partners to make additional contributions over a long period of time and if this agreement is made and all of the partners rely on the agreement then Plaintiffs should be responsible to the other partners for the agreement and for their actions.

This writer has not found a case in the State of Utah which specifically addresses this point. In the case of Rond v. Yeaman-Yordan-Hale Productions, 681 P.2d 1240 (1984), the court determined the following:

"We conclude that the failure to file the certificate of limited partnership does not effect the existence of the limited partnership as an entity, in a controversy between the partners themselves, where neither the interest of third-parties nor a partners claim of limited liability is involved."