1988

Joseph Brozda, Warren T. Christensen v. Houston Investors Limited, Donald Houston ,H. Clark Houston, and Linford Orton : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Contrary to statutory mandate, the Certificate of Limited Partnership does not specify a time or the conditions under which the partnership would be dissolved and contributions returned. No partnership term or date for return of capital can be implied. After appropriate demand and elapse of time, the Respondent limited partners were, therefore, entitled to an order dissolving the partnership pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 48-2-16, as a matter of law.

Neither the Certificate of Limited Partnership nor any other writing provides that limited partners are required to make additional partnership contributions beyond their initial contribution. Utah law mandates that such requirements be in the certificate. The Respondents were entitled to an order that contributions, subsequent to their initial contributions, were voluntary and that Appellants are not entitled to require additional contributions.

The Respondents, as limited partners, have no obligation to retire partnership obligations. The liabilities of limited partners to the partnership must be set forth in the certificate and are not necessarily coextensive with partnership obligations. Consequently, the refusal of limited partners in this case to pay "assessments" to retire all partnership debt is not a defense to the order dissolving the partnership.

ARGUMENT I

THE RESPONDENTS ARE ENTITLED TO DISSOLUTION OF THE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP AS A MATTER OF LAW PURSUANT TO UTAH CODE ANNOTATED 48-2-16.

Utah Code Ann. § 48-2-2, states in pertinent part:

Two or more persons desiring to form a limited partnership
shall:

(a) sign and swear to a certificate
which shall state:

5th The term for which the partnership
is to exist.

8th The time, if agreed upon, when the
contribution of each limited partner is to be
returned.

(Emphasis added.)

In the present case the Certificate provides no term of
the partnership, no time for dissolution, and no time for return
of contributions. (R 459, ¶11; R 462, ¶11; R 216 ¶ v; R 359, ¶8)

Utah Code Ann. § 48-2-16 provides in part:

(2) Subject to the provisions of paragraph (1), a
limited partner may rightfully demand the return of his
contribution:

- (a) On the dissolution of a partnership; or
- (b) When the date specified in the certificate for its return has arrived; or
- (c) After he has given six months' notice in writing to all other members, if not time is specified in the certificate either for the return of the contribution or for the dissolution of the partnership.

(4) A limited partner may have the partnership
dissolved and its affairs wound up when:

- (a) He rightfully but unsuccessfully demands return of his contribution;
- (b) The other liabilities of the partnership have not been paid, or the partnership is insufficient for their payment as required by paragraph (1)(a) and the partner would otherwise be entitled to the return of his contribution.

Since the Certificate of Limited Partnership makes no provision for a time to return contributions or for the dissolution of the partnership, the Respondents invoked the provisions of the foregoing statute by demanding return of their contributions in writings served on each of the partners. (R 459, ¶11; R 462, ¶11; R 216; R 359, ¶8; R 458, ¶9; R 461, ¶9) At the time of Summary Judgment, six months had elapsed since demand had been made, and no contributions had been returned to the Respondents. (R 360, ¶9) Instead of dissolving the partnership, Appellants continued to maintain that Respondents were liable to pay assessments, and that their partnership interests had been forfeited.

After reviewing the undisputed Affidavits submitted in connection with Summary Judgment, the District Court found that the Respondents were limited partners, that there were no provisions in the certificate of limited partnership for the return of contributions or dissolution of the partnership (R 359, ¶8), and that the Respondents had properly requested return of their contributions or dissolution. (R 360, ¶9) The District Court concluded that Utah Code Ann. § 48-2-16 required the dissolution of the partnership and entered its judgment accordingly. (R 360, ¶5)

When a limited partnership certificate, contrary to Utah law, states no time for dissolution, no partnership term, and no time for return of capital contributions, Utah Code Ann. § 48-2-16 provides mechanisms for the limited partners to

dissolve the partnership. If no such mechanism were provided, limited partners could become trapped in a limited partnership without their consent or agreement. Such would be contrary to the entire concept of a partnership. Respondents' entitlement to dissolution in this case is even more compelling, where Appellants continued to incur new debts and obligations after the initial contributions of the partners and, thereafter, sought to extract unauthorized assessments to pay said debts, and purported to forfeit Respondents' interest when they refused to pay assessments.

Although Utah Code Ann. § 48-2-16 is dispositive of this issue, the Appellants' brief virtually ignores the statute. The Appellants' brief does not address the facts that no provision for return of capital or dissolution is found in the certificate, and that return of contributions or request for dissolution has been properly demanded.

Instead of addressing Utah Code Ann. § 48-2-16, the Appellants weakly argue that the partnership certificate should be construed as having a fifteen year term corresponding to the length of the "White" contract and that the partnership should not be dissolved prior to that time. (App. brief, p. 8) Firstly, this theory is raised for the first time on appeal, and should not be considered by this Court. First Equity Corp. of Florida v. Utah State University, 544 P. 2d, 887 (Utah 1975); Davis v. Mulholland, 475 P.2d 834 (Utah 1970). Secondly, the gravamen of the Appellants' untimely argument is that the

Respondents allegedly knew that the "White" contract had a fifteen year term so that this knowledge by itself should imply a fifteen year partnership term and dissolution date.

The Appellants cite no language in the Certificate of Limited Partnership that can be so construed. Neither is there evidence that the Respondents executed any agreement to be bound by the provisions of the "White" contract, or to incorporate any of its terms into the partnership certificate or agreement.

Appellants cite no authority for the proposition that a material term of the written partnership certificate can be implied or fashioned by the Court from a limited partner's mere knowledge of the terms of a partnership contract with a third party. Appellants' proposition would require a re-writing of the certificate, not a matter of construction. The Utah Supreme Court has repeatedly held that Courts should not presume to fashion contract terms to which the parties did not agree. Bekins Bar V Ranch v. Huth, 644 P.2d 455 (Utah 1983); Beisinger v. Behunin, 584 P.2d 801 (Utah 1978). It is well-recognized that an ambiguous document should be construed against its draftsman. 17 AmJur 2d Contracts §276; R 457, p.28. There is no evidence that the Respondents agreed to be bound to the terms of the "White" contract, or that the partnership could not be dissolved during the term of the "White" contract. (R 358, ¶4) This Court should not, by implication, construction or otherwise, fashion a new contract term to which the parties did not agree.

Utah law requires that the term of the partnership and

the date at which contributions are to be returned be stated in the certificate. These important provisions are not found in the partnership certificate in this case. The Utah Legislature anticipated a circumstance in which a limited partnership certificate would fail to comply with the statutory mandate, and provided in Utah Code Ann. § 48-2-16 the mechanism by which limited partners could obtain dissolution of the partnership. This Court should affirm the District Court's decision that the Respondents were entitled to an order of dissolution of the partnership pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 48-2-16.

ARGUMENT II

THE RESPONDENTS CANNOT BE REQUIRED TO MAKE ADDITIONAL CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE PARTNERSHIP.

Paragraph VIII of the Certificate of Limited Partnership sets forth the initial contributions of various limited partners. (R 220, ¶ VIII) There are no provisions in the certificate or in any other writing wherein the limited partners agreed to pay additional contributions to the partnership. (R 216; R 358, ¶4-5)

The District Court ruled as a matter of law that Respondents were not obligated to make any capital contribution to the partnership beyond their initial contributions. (R 360, ¶2)

This ruling was based, in part, upon Utah Code Ann. § 48-2-2(1), which states in pertinent part:

Two or more persons desiring to form a limited partnership shall:

(a) sign and swear to a certificate which shall state:

7th The additional contributions, if any, agreed to be made by each limited partner and the times at which, or events on the happening of which they shall be made.

(Emphasis added.)

The language of the statute is mandatory. The persons forming a partnership "shall" include a provision for requiring additional contributions if the same are to be required. The clear implication is that, if no such provision is made in the certificate, there is no agreement to make any additional contributions.

In the present case, there is no issue that the certificate does not require the payment of additional contributions. (R 458, ¶ 4, 7; R 461, ¶ 4,7; R 359, ¶5; R 216) As a matter of law, this Court should rule that the limited partnership may not compel additional contributions even if voluntary contributions are made after receiving "assessments". (R 204, ¶ 20; R 211, ¶ 20; R 358, ¶4)

The Appellants respond to the clear mandatory language of Utah Code Ann. § 48-2-2(1) by stating, in effect, that the legislature did not mean what it said when it provided that certificates "shall" provide for additional contributions if they are to be required. The Appellants, without authority, glibly state "such contributions do not have to be set out in the certificate of limited partnership". (App.Brief, p.8) The Appellants attempt to support this strained position by arguing that the requirements of the law were only intended to protect

third parties and that the partners inter se can make any agreement in any form they desire. (App.Brief, p.8-9)

The Appellants admit that they have no Utah authority to support their position that an agreement to pay additional contributions need not be in the certificate, but refer to the Utah case of Rond v. Yeaman-Yordan-Hale Productions, 681 P.2d 1240 (1984). That case is inapposite. The issue in Rond was whether a limited partnership was created even though the partnership certificate had not been filed, in circumstances where neither the rights of third parties nor a partners' claim of limited liability was involved. The Rond Court found that under those circumstances a partnership had been created. The Court noted, citing Brown v. Brown, 15 Ariz. App.333, 488 P.2d 689 (1971) that the statutory filing or recording requirements are for the protection of third persons. 681 P.2d at 1242.

The Rond decision does not support the Appellants' proposition that partnership terms statutorily mandated to be in the certificate may, nevertheless, be omitted and be left to the verbal agreement of partners inter se. The Rond Court recognized that Utah Code Ann. § 48-2-2 describes numerous separate items which must be in the certificate. There was no question that the contents of the certificate in Rond were adequate to satisfy the statute. The Court simply held that, in some limited circumstances, the failure to file a certificate is not fatal to the existence of the partnership. The Rond opinion, dealing specifically with the filing requirement has no application here.

The New Mexico Court in Haefer v. Hall, 75 N.M. 751, 411 P.2d 230 (1966), cited in Appellants' brief, ruled on the same narrow issue as the Rond Court. The New Mexico Court held that failure to record a certificate of limited partnership did not affect the existence of a limited partnership and that the recording requirement is intended to protect third parties. That case does not support the Appellants' much broader proposition that the statutory scheme mandating the contents of partnership certificates is intended to protect only third parties, and the partners inter se may ignore the statutory requirements. In fact, the Haefer Court stressed that, generally, in order to obtain the privilege of limited liability, limited partners must conform to statutory requirements. 411 P.2d at 232.

The Colorado Court of Appeals in Mahon v. Harst, 738 P.2d 1190 (1987) considered whether partners could make an oral agreement regarding the removal and substitution of general partners. That Court held that such an agreement was not precluded because it was not within the purview of the Colorado statute which set forth matters required to be in the certificate. In short, such an oral agreement may be acceptable so long as the subject of the agreement is not statutorily required to be in the certificate.

In the present case, those matters which Appellants allege to have been orally agreed among the partners are statutorily required to be in the certificate. Unlike the filing requirement discussed in Rond, the provisions which are

absent in the subject partnership certificate were not required by the legislature to be in the certificate only for the purposes of protecting third parties. The requirement that the certificate state whether additional contributions are to be required is intended to protect limited partners from the very abuses practiced by Houston Investors Ltd.

The Utah Legislature has given some direction regarding the relationship and agreements of limited partners inter se. Utah Code Ann. § 48-2-14, provides that several limited partners may agree as to

"priority over other limited partners as to return of their contributions, as to their compensation by way of income, or as to any other matter. If such Agreement is made, it shall be stated in the certificate, and in the absence of such a statement all the partners shall stand upon equal footing."

Thus, the Legislature has provided that partners may agree among themselves as to their relationships, but this that such agreements must be included in the partnership certificate.

Notwithstanding the disputed allegation of Appellants' brief, raised for the first time in this appeal, that there was an agreement to retire the "White" contract debt, the certificate in the present case is good evidence that the partners were aware that their relationships inter se were to be set forth in the certificate. For example, in Paragraph X, the partners provided that there shall be no priority among them. (R 223, ¶X) In addition, in Paragraph XXII the partners agreed that certain provisions of the partnership agreement can be amended by

a vote of the partners, but that the rights of the partners interest regarding the percentage interest of any limited partner in the partnership could not be altered by vote. (R 228)

The Appellants would have this Court first disregard the statutory language, requiring that the certificate state whether additional contributions would be required of limited partners, and then recognize belated and untimely allegations of verbal agreements to make additional contributions. The Appellants have given inadequate reason and no authority to disregard the legislative mandate of Utah Code Ann. § 48-2-2. This Court should affirm the District Court's ruling that Respondents could not be required to make additional partnership contributions, as a matter of law.

ARGUMENT III

LIMITED PARTNERS' REFUSAL TO RETIRE PARTNERSHIP DEBTS IS NOT A DEFENSE TO DISSOLUTION OF THE PARTNERSHIP.

The Appellants argue that the Respondent limited partners are obligated to continue contributing to the partnership and are not entitled to dissolution of the partnership until partnership obligations are paid. Appellants argue that this is the case even though no written agreement exists to pay such obligations, because the Respondents allegedly knew at the time they became limited partners that the partnership had a long term obligation on the "White" contract. (App.Brief 4,6,9; R 290, ¶3)

The law of limited partnership contemplates that the obligations of limited partnerships and general partners will be greater than the liability of the limited partners, and that the partnership may enter into obligations with third parties which the limited partners are not obligated to retire. Utah Code Annotated 48-2-1 states:

A limited partnership is a partnership formed by two or more persons under the provisions of the next paragraph, having as members one or more general partners and one or more limited partners. The limited partners as such shall not be bound by the obligations of the partnership.

(Emphasis added.)

The obligations of limited partners to the partnership are statutorily limited. Utah Code Annotated 48-2-17(1) states:

Liability of limited partner to partnership:

(1) A limited partner is liable to the partnership:

(a) For the difference between his contribution as actually made and that stated in the certificate as having been made; and,

(b) For any unpaid contribution which he agreed in the certificate to make in the future at the time and on the conditions stated in the certificate.

(Emphasis added.)

Consequently, Limited partners are not obligated to retire partnership debts, but are only liable to the extent they have not paid contributions specified and agreed in the certificate.

Nevertheless, the Appellants urge that Respondents should be required to contribute additional amounts and be prevented from dissolving the partnership simply because of their

knowledge that the "Wnite" contract was a long term agreement. Appellants would have the Court ignore the fact that Appellants have assessed and collected from its limited partners for partnership debts far in excess of the payment on the "White" contract. The assessments which Respondents refused to pay, for example, were for substantial obligations such as the "Grimshaw" property. It is not disputed that subsequent to Respondents' payment of their initial contributions, the Appellants incurred debts to purchase the "Farrow" and "Grimshaw" properties and "Fotheringham" water rights, and assessed the Respondents for these purchases. The Respondents had no knowledge of and had not agreed to be assessed for these purchases. When General Partner Don Houston decided to sell one of his limited partnerships, the partnership obligated itself to purchase this partnership for \$51,000. (R 467, p.79:3) The partnership also borrowed more than \$76,000 from the State Bank of Southern Utah, and incurred other obligations. (R 467, p.64, Depo. Ex.E, p.3) Recent assessments are for much more than the "White" payment which Appellants offer as an excuse for their actions. In 1981, for example, of a total partnership debt of \$573,693.76, only \$201,023.16 was for the "White" contract. (R 467, Ex.E p.3)

While the Appellants now argue that Respondents should be required to assist in retiring the "White" debt, historically they have acted as if the Respondents were obligated to retire all partnership debts. Clearly, the partnership pretended it had "carte blanche" authority to assess the Respondents for any

number of partnership obligations and did so for many years.

Appellants argument on appeal that Respondents cannot exercise their statutory rights to dissolve this partnership and, contrary to the partnership certificate and Utah law, should be required to pay the "White" contract, is a disingenuous diversion from Appellants' historical conduct of assessment for substantial partnership obligations far beyond the "White contract. (R 467, p.79:3)

There is no authority for the Appellants' proposition and conduct that the obligation of limited partners is coextensive with partnership obligations. All statutory authority is to the contrary. The argument that Respondents were required to make additional contributions to retire partnership obligations and are not entitled to dissolution until obligations have been retired is repugnant to Utah law and must be rejected.

CONCLUSION

This was a proper case for entry of Summary Judgment. There are no disputes regarding material facts. All issues were properly decided as matter of law.

The Respondents each agreed to contribute approximately \$10,000 to a limited partnership. On the request of the partnership, and without a requirement to do so, each contributed a total of more than \$40,000.00. When the Respondents stopped contributing to the partnership and requested a return of their contributions or dissolution, almost eleven years after their